



An agency of the Government of Ontario

Un organisme du gouvernement de l'Ontario

This document was retrieved from the Ontario Heritage Act e-Register, which is accessible through the website of the Ontario Heritage Trust at **www.heritagetrust.on.ca**.

Ce document est tiré du registre électronique. tenu aux fins de la *Loi sur le* patrimoine de l'Ontario, accessible à partir du site Web de la Fiducie du patrimoine ontarien sur **www.heritagetrust.on.ca.** 



City Clerk's Office

ONTARIO HERITAGE TRUST

FEB 28 2003

RECEIVED

Secretariat Frances M. Pritchard Toronto and East York Community Council City Hall, 12th Floor, West 100 Queen Street West

Toronto, Ontario M5H 2N2

Ulli S. Watkiss City Clerk

Tel: 416-392-7033 Fax: 416-392-2980 e-mail: teycc@toronto.ca Web: www.toronto.ca

# IN THE MATTER OF THE ONTARIO HERITAGE ACT R.S.O. 1990 CHAPTER 0.18 AND 915 KING STREET WEST (MASSEY-HARRIS OFFICE BUILDING) CITY OF TORONTO, PROVINCE OF ONTARIO

### NOTICE OF PASSING OF BY-LAW

TSCC 1559 - Massey Harris Lofts 160 Carrier Drive, #200 Toronto, Ontario M9W 5R1

Ontario Heritage Trust 10 Adelaide Street East Toronto, Ontario M5C 1J3

Take notice that the Council of the City of Toronto has passed By-law No. 82-2008 to designate 915 King Street West (Massey-Harris Office Building) (Trinity-Spadina Ward 19) as being of cultural heritage value or interest.

Dated at Toronto this 29th day of February, 2008.

Authority:

Toronto and East York Community Council Item 7.14,

as adopted by City of Toronto Council on July 16, 17, 18 and 19, 2007

Enacted by Council: January 30, 2008

## **CITY OF TORONTO**

## BY-LAW No. 82-2008

To designate the property at 915 King Street West (Massey-Harris Office Building) as being of cultural heritage value or interest.

WHEREAS authority was granted by Council to designate the property at 915 King Street West (Massey-Harris Office Building) as being of cultural heritage value or interest; and

WHEREAS the Ontario Heritage Act authorizes the Council of a municipality to enact by-laws to designate real property, including all the buildings and structures thereon, to be of cultural heritage value or interest; and

WHEREAS the Council of the City of Toronto has caused to be served upon the owners of the land and premises known as 915 King Street West and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust, Notice of Intention to designate the property and has caused the Notice of Intention to be posted on the City's web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162, Notice, Public, Article II, § 162-4, Notice requirements under the *Ontario Heritage Act*; and

WHEREAS the reasons for designation are set out in Schedule "A" to this by-law; and

WHEREAS no notice of objection was served upon the Clerk of the municipality;

The Council of the City of Toronto HEREBY ENACTS as follows:

- 1. The property at 915 King Street West, more particularly described in Schedule "B" and shown on Schedule "C" attached to this by-law, is designated as being of cultural heritage value or interest.
- 2. The City Solicitor is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the property described in Schedule "B" to this by-law in the proper Land Registry Office.
- The City Clerk is authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be served upon the owners of the property at 915 King Street West and upon the Ontario Heritage Trust and to cause notice of this by-law to be posted on the City's web site for a period of 30 days in accordance with Municipal Code Chapter 162, Notice, Public, Article II, § 162-4, Notice requirements under the Ontario Heritage Act.

ENACTED AND PASSED this 30th day of January, A.D. 2008.

SANDRA BUSSIN,

Speaker

ULLI S. WATKISS
City Clerk

(Corporate Seal)

## **SCHEDULE "A"**

#### REASONS FOR DESIGNATION

## Description

The property at 915 King Street West is worthy of designation under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act for its cultural heritage value or interest, and meets the criteria for municipal designation prescribed by the Province of Ontario under the three categories of design, historical and contextual value. Located on the south side of King Street West, west of Strachan Avenue, the building was constructed as the administrative offices for the Massey Manufacturing Company, with additions after the firm became known as Massey-Harris Limited. Historical records indicate that a two-storey building was completed at the north end of the site in 1885, with the third floor and a three-storey south wing added in two stages before World War I. The property was listed on the inaugural City of Toronto Inventory of Heritage Properties in June 1973, and a Heritage Easement Agreement was registered in 1989. The Massey-Harris Office Building has been converted into a residential condominium.

# Statement of Cultural Heritage Value

The Massey-Harris Office Building is a representative example of a late 19th century commercial building that was constructed in stages, with the different sections united stylistically by the application of Classical details. Of particular importance are the series of bay windows on the original (north) building, and the sculptural detailing above the main (east) entrance and on the large (north) pediment.

Historically, the property is associated with the Massey family and its manufacturing conglomerate. The company's origins date to 1851 when Hart A. Massey assumed the management of his father's foundry and machine shop in Newcastle, Canada West (now Ontario). Incorporated as the Massey Manufacturing Company in 1870, nine years later the firm moved to a six-acre site in Toronto. Hundreds of workers were employed to produce agricultural implements that were shipped worldwide. A series of mergers culminated in 1891 with the company's amalgamation with its chief rival, the A. Harris, Son and Company. The additions to the office building followed. As Massey-Harris, the firm was the largest producer and exporter of its type in the British Empire in the late 19th century. It was known as Massey-Ferguson from 1958 until 1987 when the company was taken over by the Varity Corporation.

The original (north) portion of the Massey-Harris Office Building was designed by Toronto architect Edward James (E. J.) Lennox. Following an apprenticeship with architect William Irving and a short-lived partnership with Frederick McCaw, Lennox embarked on a solo career in 1881. His association with the Massey family began immediately, as Lennox prepared the plans for this office building and a residence for Hart Massey's son, Charles, on Jarvis Street, as well as supervising the alterations to Hart Massey's neighbouring house, Euclid Hall. With one of the largest practices in Canada, Lennox was selected to design Toronto's third City Hall (now known as Old City Hall) in 1886. While this civic project lasted over a decade, during the 1890s Lennox accepted additional commissions from the Massey family, including the Fred Victor Mission (named for Hart Massey's youngest son who died in 1890) and the Massey Mausoleum in

Mount Pleasant Cemetery (1890-1894).

The south additions to the building were undertaken by George M. Miller, who established his architectural practice in Toronto in 1885. Like Lennox, Miller was known for his association with the Massey family, beginning with his work as a consultant on Massey Hall (originally known as Massey Music Hall) in 1894. During the next decade, Miller designed the City Dairy and Stables (1900 and 1909) on Spadina Crescent for Walter Massey, oversaw further modifications to Euclid Hall (1900), and prepared the plans for the Lillian Massey Household Sciences Building at Victoria College (1908-1912).

The Massey-Harris Office Building is the last surviving example from the complex of industrial buildings that the company developed on both sides of King Street West, west of Strachan Avenue. With its sculptural detailing, the building is local landmark and a reminder of the historical development of the area.

# Heritage Attributes

The heritage attributes of the Massey-Harris Office Building related to its design value as a representative example of a late 19th century commercial building with Classical detailing are found on the east façade, the north elevation, and the rooflines of the latter walls, consisting of:

- The three-storey rectangular plan above a raised rock-faced stone base with window openings and a stone band course.
- The red brick cladding with stone trim.
- On the principal (east) façade and the north elevation of the original building (with the third-floor addition), the cornice and parapet marking the flat roofline.
- On the north elevation facing King Street East, the symmetrical organization of the wall with a central frontispiece that terminates in a triangular parapet.
- In the north parapet, a tympanum with intricately carved stonework and a cartouche inscribed "M. H.".
- In the first floor of the north wall, the four bay windows that are set into relieving arches with stone trim, and feature wood surrounds with colonettes, cornices and panels, with brick and stone trim above.
- In the second storey of the north elevation, the brick piers or pilasters framing flat-headed window openings with sash windows, and the continuous stone sills and lintels.
- The third-floor addition, featuring flat-headed window openings with stone lintels and sills.
- The long principal (east) façade facing a laneway, where the original (1885) section at the north end repeats the pattern and detailing of the fenestration found on the north elevation.

- On the east façade, the frontispiece with a triangular parapet (smaller than the one found on the north elevation) and the main entrance at its base.
- The main entrance, which was altered when the building was extended and set in a large smooth stone surround.
- Above the entry in the third storey, the placement of a stone plaque inscribed with the Massey-Harris name, and a semi-circular window opening with stained glass.
- The east façade of the south additions, consisting of three wide bays divided by brick piers or pilasters in the centre, and three narrower bays at the south end.
- On the latter sections of the east façade, the fenestration with brick and stone trim that mixes large semi-circular-headed window openings (first floor, centre section), round-arched window openings (third storey), and flat-headed window openings with sash windows (all floors).

The south elevation, which was altered, and the rear (west) wall, which has no distinguishing features, were excluded from the heritage easement agreement and are <u>not</u> included in the Reasons for Designation.

## **SCHEDULE "B"**

All units and Common Elements comprising the property included in Toronto Standard Condominium Plan No. 1559, being Property Identifier Numbers 12559-0001 (LT) to 12559-0071 (LT), Land Titles Division of Metropolitan Toronto (No. 66)

City of Toronto and Province of Ontario

The hereinbefore described land being delineated by heavy outline on Sketch No. PS-2007-301 dated December 3, 2007, as set out in Schedule "C".

